

Regional Universities Forum for Capacity Building in Agriculture (RUFORUM)

Report of the Principals and Deans' Meeting

Held at Nobleza Hotel, Kigali, Rwanda 19th September 2013

Regional Universities Forum for Capacity Building in Agriculture (RUFORUM) Plot 151/155 Garden Hill, Makerere University Main Campus,

P. O. Box 7062, Kampala, Uganda.

Tel: +256-414-535939 (Office) Fax: +256-414-534153

Website: www.ruforum.org





Table of contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	4
1.1.	Background	4
1.1.1	l. Objectives	4
2.	HIGHLIGHTS OF THE MEETING DISCUSSIONS	5
2.1.	Opening and overview of performance	5
2.1.1	. Welcome and objectives by Paul Nampala	5
2.1.2	2. Opening remarks by Solange Uwituze	5
2.1.3	3. Opening and achievements of the past year for RUFORUM by Nodumo Dhlamini	6
2.1.4	I. External review of RUFORUM by Paul Nampala	6
2.1.5	5. Summary of the report of visioning for the next 5 years for RUFORUM by Solange Uwituze	7
2.1.6	5. Issues from past Principals and Deans meetings by Agnes A. Obua-Ogwal	7
2.2.	Operationalization of key strategic thrusts	8
2.2.1	Presentation on partnerships by Malcom Blackie	8
2.2.2	Presentation by David Campbell	8
1.1.1	Presentation on National Forums by Patrick Okori	8
1.1.2	Presentation on livestock by George Gitau	9
1.1.3	3. Operationalization of graduate teaching assistantships by Sylvia Mkandawire	9
1.2.	Data collection and reporting for visibility of RUFORUM achievements	10
1.2.1	Presentation on CABI by David Onyango	10
1.2.2	2. Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) and the RUFORUM Network by Liz Levy	10
1.2.3	B. RUFORUM Information Management System (RIMS) by Nodumo Dhlamini	11
1.2.4	I. The RUFORUM Institutional Repository by Liz Levy	11
1.3.	Summary and conclusions	12
2.	List of Annexes	13
2.1.	Annex 1. Countries represented	13
2.2.	Annex 2. Program Agenda	14
2.3.	Annex 3. Attendance List for the Deans' Meeting 19th September 2013, Kigali Rwanda	16





1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Background

RUFORUM's capacity building efforts stem from the significance of agriculture to the continent and a commitment to support postgraduate level training and research among its member universities as enshrined in the RUFORUM Vision and Mission. A strategic entry point to catalyze the process of graduate training and research is the proactive engagement of Principals and Deans responsible for agriculture at respective RUFORUM member universities. The Principals and Deans Committee is an organ of the RUFORUM Governance Structure comprising of Principals and Deans of Colleges / Faculties of Agriculture and related sciences participating in RUFORUM's activities. Its functions are to: (a) Review of issues from the National Forums and Regional Thematic Groups and providing feedback to the Secretariat and Technical Committee; and (b) provide advice to the RUFORUM Secretariat on activity progress and issues emerging at individual university and country levels.

The Deans and Principals' Meeting under the framework of RUFORUM was held on 19th September 2013 at Nobleza Hotel, Kigali, Rwanda. This meeting was attended by delegates from 17 countries (Annex 1 and 3).

1.1.1. Objectives

The main objective of this meeting was to review operations of the RUFORUM Network over the past year, and also make strategic recommendations to improve performance for the next year.

The specific objectives were to:

- 1. Provide updates on RUFORUM activities in 2012/2013 and emerging issues, including from the independent external review
- 2. Review implementation of agreed actions in previous meetings of Deans of RUFORUM member universities
- 3. Seek guidance on strategic thrusts for future operations of the RUFORUM Network in relation to:
 - a. Key strategic areas for the period 2014-2018
 - b. Strategies for partnerships and expansion of membership under RUFORUM
 - Modalities for implementing Graduate Teaching Assistantships (GTA) as part of the self-effort by member Universities to train faculty staff at PhD level in RUFORUM member Universities
 - d. Strengthening the work on livestock under RUFORUM
 - e. How to improve the national forums
 - f. Increased visibility of RUFORUM through use of ICTs



4. Review of the Principals and Deans' Committee Communiqué of September /November 2012, and agree on a communication to the AGM of 2013

The meeting was organized in four main sessions namely; 1) Opening, 2) Overview of performance, 3) Operationalization of key strategic thrusts, and 4) Data collection and reporting for visibility of RUFORUM achievements. The meeting adopted a facilitated participatory approach to focus on the specific issues as mentioned in the objectives. Because of the availability of some speakers/presenters at particular times of the day, the program (Annex 2) was not strictly sequentially followed. However, the facilitator for the meeting, Dr. Paul Nampala, allowed for all presentations to be done and also the discussions to be undertaken.

All the presentations made during the meeting, and all the reference documents, including those for the AGM, were compiled and included in the flash diskette that was given to all the Principals and Deans.

2. HIGHLIGHTS OF THE MEETING DISCUSSIONS

2.1. Opening and overview of performance

2.1.1. Welcome and objectives by Paul Nampala

The facilitator of the meeting, Dr. Paul Nampala, welcomed the participants from RUFORUM member countries in the land of a thousand hills (Rwanda) and thanked them for coming. He later facilitated them to introduce themselves. He mentioned that such meetings are important because they provide participants with the opportunity to be updated on RUFORUM activities, review of implementation of agreed actions, and guidance on proposed and future operations or activities of RUFORUM network. He highlighted the objectives of the meeting and also outlined the process the meeting would take.

2.1.2. Opening remarks by Solange Uwituze

Dr. Solange Uwituze, who is also the Deputy Chair of the RUFORUM Deans and Principals Committee, warmly welcomed the Deans and Principals in Rwanda. She further informed the participants that there are currently 18 member countries in RUFORUM network. She highlighted that the importance of RUFORUM is to serve as a *Think-Tank* where member countries come together and plan towards achieving common objectives, for example, ensuring food security. Dr. Uwituze further emphasized that agriculture sector and all of us involved have the noble job of feeding the world since nobody can perform without eating. In addition, the Deputy Chair of Deans Committee highlighted the importance of thinking along the value-chain and designing curriculum for students that respond to the market needs. She emphasized that our responsibility as RUFORUM is to produce adequate and quality food for our populations. Dr. Uwituze asked the Deans and Principals to consider the graduate teaching and



research assistantships as a program will enhance and further strengthen staff development in RUFORUM member countries. She concluded her remarks by thanking Dr. Daphrose Gahakwa, the former Minister of Education for initiating RUFORUM in Rwanda and finally wished the participants fruitful deliberations.

2.1.3. Opening and achievements of the past year for RUFORUM by Nodumo Dhlamini

Ms. Nodumo Dhlamini, who spoke on behalf of Prof. Adipala Ekwamu, the Executive Secretary of RUFORUM, gave an overview of the meetings objectives highlighted as indicated in section 1.2. Ms. Nodumo Dhlamini is the Program Manager at RUFORUM Secretariat for Information, Communication and Technology (ICT).

Ms. Nodumo further updated the participants on RURORUM Secretariat-led activities for 2012-13 and emerging issues. She highlighted the five core areas of RUFORUM namely; 1) demand driven research, community action and institutional strengthening, 2) activities to guide and support research and institutional grants, 3) monitoring and evaluation, 4) harnessing ICT for improved performance at the secretariat and universities, and 5) tightening and enhancing RUFORUM governance and management. Ms. Dhlamini concluded her presentation by citing one of the major challenges affecting RUFORUM as that of changing tenure of Deans and Principles. Usually, the newly appointed Deans and Principles take time to familiarize with RUFORUM activities.

2.1.4. External review of RUFORUM by Paul Nampala

RUFORUM undertook an External Review of RUFORUM from March-May 2013 of the programs implemented in the past 4 years, with a specific focus on the BMGF project. The objectives of the review were to:

- Assess progress achieved during the implementation of the first phase of the BMGF program
- 2. Establish the extent of achievement of project objectives and outcomes on direct target groups and indirect program beneficiaries
- 3. Incorporate feedback from key stakeholders, principally, funded-researchers, faculty, university deans, vice-chancellors and other key partners to implementation
- 4. Document lessons to help shape future strategic direction

Dr. Paul Nampala made a summary presentation and highlighted the issues raised by the review team. The full report was circulated to all the Principals and Deans (on the flash diskette) and they were encouraged to study the report and take action as needed.



2.1.5. Summary of the report of visioning for the next 5 years for RUFORUM by Solange Uwituze

RUFORUM Secretariat organized a meeting for some Principals and Deans from 26-27 Jun. 2013 in order to get some indications on the future of RUFORUM for the next 5 years, from the perspectives of the Principals and Deans. Dr. Uwituze made a summary presentation of the discussions held and the proposals suggested. The full report was included in the flash diskette that was given to the Principals and Deans at the end of the meeting.

2.1.6. Issues from past Principals and Deans meetings by Agnes A. Obua-Ogwal

Agnes provided a summary of all the Principals and Deans Meetings since 2009. The schedule of the meetings are presented in Table 1.

No	Dates	Town	Focus / theme of meeting
1	31Aug-4Sept.09	Mombasa	Recreating African Universities for Development Relevance
3	27 Aug. 11	Lilongwe	Agricultural Tertiary Education in Africa: Reorienting Capacity Building through University Networking
4	22 Sept. 12	Entebbe	Quality Assurance & Credit Accumulation and Transfer; & National Forums
Х	23 Sept. 12	Entebbe	RUFORUM Theory of Change
5	24 Nov. 12	Entebbe	Strengthening capacity of newer and/or under resourced member universities; Students feedback; Future focus of RUFORUM; Content of the MoU with member universities
Х	26-27 Jun 13	Entebbe	Consultations on the future of RUFORUM in the next 5 years

The key issues that have been raised over the years were as follows:

- Improving financial viability of the universities and particularly the sustainability of Regional Programs
- 2. Increasing the output and impact of research
- 3. Curricular development targeting market segments
- 4. Strengthening management and leadership
- 5. Infrastructure for ICT
- 6. Improving enrolment pre-university teaching
- 7. Strengthening Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning
- 8. After graduation support and engagement with industry
- 9. Networking, outreach, advocacy and outreach

Details of all these areas were documented and was also circulated in the flash diskette, including the minutes of all the previous Principals and Deans meetings.



2.2. Operationalization of key strategic thrusts

2.2.1. Presentation on partnerships by Malcom Blackie

Prof. Malcom, a retired professor from the University of Zimbabwe discussed the importance of strategic partnerships and expansion of membership under RUFORUM framework. Malcom expressed the relevance of partnership to member Universities through shared experiences, resources, trainings and research and also vision casting.

2.2.2. Presentation by David Campbell

Prof. David Campbell, former professor at the Royal Agricultural College in the United Kingdom stressed the need for fellowship programs that would help African students to make a difference. Campbell emphasized the following points with regard to future partnerships and opportunities between Royal Agricultural College and RUFORUM member universities:

- Strong linkage between RUFORUM Universities and private sector;
- Monitoring and Evaluation;
- Undergraduate and graduate fellowship programs; and
- Collaboration in the areas of curriculum development and exchange of students and professors.

1.1.1. Presentation on National Forums by Patrick Okori

Assoc. Prof. Patrick Okori anchored his presentation on the RUFORUM impact statement¹, and emphasized that training and research are not ends in themselves but a means to the end. He mentioned that there are four areas of focus needed:

- Improving operations: (resource access and use): institutional capacity strengthening;
 and resource mobilization and rationalization
- Support to market segments through outreach (public awareness) and strengthened knowledge management
- Service to market segments through supporting outcome(s) and impact(s) delivery
- Advocacy for critical issues such as gender & equity, funding, visibility, capacity building

He concluded by asking the members to identify key structural challenges within the institutions, and at national level. Some of these included policy instruments needed at College and University level to frame operations, institutional arrangements are needed to harness ongoing opportunities among staff and Faculty, engagement with stakeholders at the national level.

¹ High performing African universities that strive to produce skilled, proactive graduates, demand driven research output and innovation in response to regional and national agricultural development priorities



1.1.2. Presentation on livestock by George Gitau

Prof. George Gitau gave a presentation on how to strengthen the work on livestock under the RUFORUM programs. Prof. Gitau appealed to RUFORUM to do the following:

- 1) Give support to the livestock component within the RUFORUM framework;
- 2) Endorse and approve the further development of livestock thematic area; and
- 3) Encourage participation of more universities engaged in livestock research to participate in RUFORUM livestock activities.

Prof. Gitau recommended the following three thematic areas:

- 1) Sustainable livestock health and production through regional approach and collaboration for improved livelihoods and enhancing food security;
- 2) Quality and innovative market-driven animal product processing and/or value addition for public health and safety; and
- 3) Stakeholder-driven livestock market systems, policy and regulatory frameworks for improved and sustainable livelihoods.

1.1.3. Operationalization of graduate teaching assistantships by Sylvia Mkandawire

Mrs. Sylvia Mkandawire, the Program Officer for Training and Quality Assurance, presented the concept and outline of the proposed graduate teaching assistantship (GTA) program. She explained that the GTA program was designed and proposed to enable member universities to address their teaching and research capacity gap needs, and to address challenges related to aging / retiring experienced staff in the member universities. She further expounded that over the years, RUFORUM member universities have sought openings to send their staff for post-graduate training to universities in Europe, USA, Asia, and other destinations at very high costs. Beginning in 2004, the RUFORUM network championed the development of selected regional agricultural post-graduate training programs to support training for its member universities by using the capacities resident in the network through identified RUFORUM centers of excellence. Mrs. Mkandawire added that funding for these regional agricultural post-graduate programs has remained a challenge – development partners would only fund components of the training costs (e.g. research, attendance to conferences, etc) but not the full package (research, tuition, stipend, short skills training, exposure events) to support the post-graduate students.

Mrs. Mkandawire then explained that the GTA was all about staff exchange for agricultural training at master and doctoral levels (priority being given to the doctoral training focusing not only on the RUFORUM regional post-graduate training programs but other university programs as well). She elaborated that the GTA Mechanism would support capacity building in key identified gap areas of the participating member universities. RUFORUM member universities would send staff for training to other RUFORUM universities, and also receive staff to be trained on behalf of the sending university. The RUFORUM Secretariat would play a brokering role.



The GTA mechanism places the responsibility on the member universities to support capacity building of their own staff members, clarified Mrs. Mkandawire. She also mentioned that the RUFORUM Vice Chancellors had agreed, in principle, to implement the GTA Mechanism, and that the Principals and Deans would be responsible for working out the operational modalities for implementing such a noble scheme. The details of how the Graduate Teaching Assistantship (GTA) Mechanism is proposed to work was also highlighted as follows:

- Sending and receiving universities identify their capacity gaps
- The receiving university waives fees and provide accommodation for the students/staff nominated by the sending university
- The sending university provides their staff with travel, stipend and research funds
- The nominated student/staff will contribute to the host university by participating in teaching during his/her training

The Principals and Deans agreed that the topic needs further clarification and discussion.

1.2. Data collection and reporting for visibility of RUFORUM achievements

1.2.1. Presentation on CABI by David Onyango

Mr. David Onyango from the Centre for Agricultural Bioscience International (CABI) gave a presentation on how to strengthen tertiary agricultural in Africa through, (i) enhancing access to agricultural research discovery tools; (ii) capacity building in agricultural knowledge management through training; (iii) improving access to agricultural and environmental scientific knowledge. He elaborated on how CABI has various resources that the member universities could access to improve their research and training programs.

1.2.2. Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) and the RUFORUM Network by Liz Levy

The presentation on IPRs showcased Open Educational Resources (OER) and Open Access (OA) as freely available materials for use by educators and students. These could therefore be distributed and adapted without requesting permission, but attribution would often be required. Ms. Liz Levy also explained that teaching resources in African universities are frequently out-of-date, and insufficient budgets make it impossible to purchase new textbooks and other materials: she said OER offers a cost-effective way to update resources. Ms. Levy elaborated that RUFORUM has worked with network members to create 26 e-learning courses, which are being turned into OERs and OA PDF files; RUFORUM collaborates with OER Africa and network members in Ethiopia, Uganda, and Tanzania on the AgShare initiative; and that RUFORUM has requested funding to explore the feasibility of creating an OER/OA pilot course, using MOOC methodologies. She encouraged all the participants to visit the RUFORUM



institutional repository to browse OER and OA resources at http://repository.ruforum.org/. Ms. Levey also provided other useful links and websites that the participants could visit.

1.2.3. RUFORUM Information Management System (RIMS) by Nodumo Dhlamini

Ms. Nodumo Dhlamini informed the members of the key components and the progress made so far in computerizing the management information system for RUFORUM. She highlighted the various modules covered by the RIMS to facilitate efficiency in the following areas

- Competitive Grants System
- Tracking RUFORUM Network Contacts students, staff, other stakeholders
- Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning
- Training and Quality Assurance
- Archiving of Internal Institutional Documents

Progress made so far is as follows:

- Online reporting for Principal Investigators
- Tracking alumni and current students
- Compiling the contacts database all students, Principals and Deans, Board members, IAP members, other stakeholders from various RUFORUM meetings

She requested the Principals and Deans to support the online data collection as and when requests for information are made

1.2.4. The RUFORUM Institutional Repository by Liz Levy

An institutional repository (IR), is an online library, collects, preserves, and disseminates in digital format, the intellectual output of an institution said Ms. Liz Levy. She explained that resources contained in institutional repositories are frequently classified as open access and freely available. Many institutions are now having IRs such as some member universities, CABI, and ILRI. Ms. Liz explained to the members that and IR is important because

- Recognition of African research is hampered because it does not reach the global knowledge pool
- Resources in the RUFORUM repository are indexed and abstracted in the major scholarly search engines and services, and thus can be reached by scientists everywhere
- The repository can protect intellectual property rights. It's hard to plagiarize if a work and authorship are widely indexed online and not in question
- Research has shown that making full text freely available online brings increased visibility, usage, and impact

All RUFORUM network members (present in the meeting and also other faculty members and students) were encouraged to submit their resources for inclusion in the repository; they were



also encouraged to visit the RUFORUM Institutional Repository and write to RUFORUM with their comments. The URL is: http://repository.ruforum.org/

1.3. Summary and conclusions

The RUFORUM Secretariat acknowledged the active participation of the Principals and Deans in the meeting. They also acknowledged the participation and funding of the various partnerships and programs that support the RUFORUM activities. The support from DAAD towards this meeting was also greatly appreciated. The Deans and Principals' meeting concluded that there the main issues that still need further efforts by all members were as follows:

- Improving the visibility of RUFORUM member universities at the regional and continental levels;
- Sustaining and improving the financial viability of the regional programs and taking opportunity of participating the graduate teaching assistantship (GTA) mechanism;
- Improving graduate completion rates, particularly timely completion;
- Improving infrastructure for ICT both for the hardware and the soft skills needed to harness the ICT for improved research, training, and communication, particularly through embracing Open Educational Resources and Open Access policies, and using the Institutional Repository facilities available;
- Strengthening the advisory role of Principals and Dean's Committee;
- Improving the livestock research projects with the RUFORUM member universities, and principally within the RUFORUM CGS program
- Improving the quality of the training programs and targeting the curricular development and review to the various market segments;
- Increasing the outputs and impact of research through improved research, training programs, learning and communication;
- Strengthening Monitoring, Evaluation and Learning particularly for research programs; and
- Maintaining the linkages established in such meetings and improving networking amongst the various member universities faculties.



2. List of Annexes

2.1. Annex 1. Countries represented

Country	Numbers
1. Botswana	1
2. Burundi	1
3. Democratic Republic of Congo	1
4. Ethiopia	2
5. Israel	1
6. Kenya	10
7. Malawi	4
8. Mozambique	3
9. Namibia	1
10. Rwanda (includes 6 NUR LOC staff)	7
11. South Africa	2
12. Sudan	2
13. Swaziland	1
14. Uganda (includes 10 RUFORUM Secretariat staff)	19
15. UK	2
16. Zambia	1
17. Zimbabwe	2
Total	60



2.2. Annex 2. Program Agenda

Dean's Committee Meeting: Pre-AGM 2013. 19-20 Sept.2013. Kigali, Rwanda

Time	Program Thursday 19 th September 2013	Responsible
Day 1	Agenda Day 1: 19 September 2013: Nobleza Hotel	
	Session 1: Opening	
8.00 hrs	> Registration	Emmanuel Okalany
8.30 hrs	➤ Welcome Remarks: Chair Deans Committee (DC) & Host	Tiisekwa Bendantunguka
		Solange Uwituze
	➤ Welcome Remarks: RUFORUM Secretariat	Nodumo Dhlamini
	Objectives and process for the Meeting	Facilitator
	Session 2: Overview of performance	
8.45 hrs	Updates on RUFORUM (Secretariat-led) activities for 2012/2013 and	Nodumo
	emerging issues	
9.00 hrs	➤ Review of implementation of agreements in previous meetings of Deans²	Agnes
	> Input into the report by Deans on visioning for the next 5 years for	Solange
9.15 hrs	RUFORUM, 26-27 Jun. 2013	
	➤ Issues and recommendations from the March-May 2013 External Review	Paul Nampala
9.30 hrs	of RUFORUM	
9.45 hrs	➤ Guided group and plenary discussions	Facilitator
11.00 hrs	Health Break	
	Session 3a: Operationalization of key strategic thrusts	
11.30 hrs	> How to operationalize teaching assistantships in universities (what does it	Sylvia Mkandawire
	take to make this happen in the universities?)	
11.50 hrs	 Guided group discussions 	All & Facilitator
	Plenary discussion	
12.40 hrs	➤ Talk on Intellectual Property Rights (IPR)	Liz Levy
13.00 hrs	Lunch	
	Session 3b: Operationalization of key strategic thrusts	
14.00 hrs	Partnerships and expansion of membership under RUFORUM	Malcolm Blackie
	Strengthening National Forums	Patrick Okori
	➤ How to strengthen the work on livestock under RUFORUM	Professor Kimera
14.45 hrs	 Guided group discussions 	All & Facilitator
	Plenary discussion	
16.30 hrs	Health Break	
	Session 4: Data collection and reporting for visibility of RUFORUM	
	achievements	
16.50 hrs	➤ Launch of the MIS modules on the RUFORUM Grants	Nodumo
	Proposed data collection on the RUFORUM indicator "improved	Agnes
	excellence of member universities" – academic profiles of universities	
	➤ Launch of the Institutional Repository	
		Nodumo/ Liz Levy/ Joan
17.20 hrs	> Access to CABI databases	David Onyango (CABI)
17.30 hrs	Wrap up for the day and way forward	Solange Uwituze
	Closing remarks	Emilio Tostao

 $^2\ \text{Mombasa: 31Aug-4Sept.2009; Victoria Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Lilongwe: 29-30 Aug. 2011; Entebbe: 22-23 Sept. 2012; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010; Constant Falls: 5-7 Aug. 2010$

Entebbe: 24 Nov. 2012



18:00 hrs

END for the day



2.3. Annex 3. Attendance List for the Deans' Meeting 19th September 2013, Kigali Rwanda

Summary attendance

Category	Actual number as at detailed list
Principals	2
Represented principals	1
Deans	24
Represented Deans	4
Secretariat Staff	10
NUR LOC	6
Others	13
Totals	60

Detailed attendance list

No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
NO.	Jex	
1.	Male	RUFORUM Principals Prof. Bernard Bashaasha
1.	Мате	Tron Bornara Babhaabha
		Principal, Makerere University College of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, P.O Box
		7062, Kampala, Uganda Telephone: +256 414 531145
		Mobile: +256 772627249
		Email: bashaasha@agric.mak.ac.ug; principal@caes.mak.ac.ug
2.	Female	Prof. Agnes Mwang'ombe
۷.	remale	Principal College of Agriculture and Veterinary Science,
		University of Nairobi P.O. Box 00100-30197, Nairobi, Kenya
		Telephone; +254-20-2055126
		Mobile: +254 722788995
		Email: wakesho123@gmail.com; principal-cavs@uonbi.ac.ke;
		mwangombe@kenyaweb.com
		Representatives of Principals
3.	Female	Dr. Nakavuma Jesca
3.	remale	Deputy Principal College of Veterinary Medicine and Biosecurity
		Makerere University, P.O. Box 7062, Kampala, Uganda
		Telephone; +256 414 554685
		Mobile: +256 772 434093; +256 752 521571
		Email: <u>ilnakavuma@vetmed.mak.ac.ug</u> ; <u>jesca.Nakavuma@gmail.com</u>
		Deans
4.	Male	Mr. Chitao Maxon Lenon
4.	Male	Dean Faculty of Agriculture, Mzuzu University, Malawi
		Telephone: + 265 1320722; +265111933282
		Mobile +265884124790; +265 995811460; +265 111933282
		Email: maxonchitawo@yahoo.co.uk; mlchitawo@gmail.com
		Eman. maxonemawowyanoo.co.uk, miemawowgman.com



No	Sex	Name and Address Details
No.		
5.	Male	Dr. Albert Zwenhamo Chiteka
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture and Natural Resources
		Africa University, Zimbabwe, P.O. Box 1320, Mutare, Zimbabwe
		Telephone: +263 20 60026
		Mobile: +263 778352355
		Email: albertchiteka@gmail.com; deanfanr@africau.edu
6.	Male	Dr. Freedom King
		Dean Faculty of Agronomy and Bioengineering, University of Burundi
		Ruhero, Boulevard du 28 Novembre, Bujumbura, Burundi
		Telephone: +257 222 18743
		Mobile: +257 79152255
		Email: freedom.king@ub.edu.bi
7.	Male	Dr. Elenimo Briliant Khonga
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture, Content Farm, Sebele, Private Bag 0027, Gaborone, Botswana
		Telephone: +267 3650103; +267 392 8998; +267 3650103
		Mobile: +267 721 90591
		Email: ebkhonga@bca.bw; ebkhonga56@gmail.com
8.	Male	Dr. Anthony Mwangi Kibe
		Acting Dean, Faculty of Agriculture, Egerton University P.O. Box 535-20115, Egerton,
		Kenya.
		Telephone: +254 512217684; +254 512113491
		Mobile: +254 721402957
		Email: kibeanto@gmail.com; akibe@egerton.ac.ke
9.	Male	Dr. Ambrose Kiprop
).	Maic	Dean Faculty of Agriculture, Moi University, P.O. Box 3900-30100, Eldoret, Kenya/P.O.
		Box 9111-30100 Eldoret, Kenya
		Telephone: +254 719241704; +254 751477937
		Email: ambkiprop@yahoo.com; ambkiprop@yahoo.com
10.	Male	Prof. Ngugi Kinuthia Robinson
10.	Male	Dean Faculty of Agriculture, College of Agriculture and Veterinary Sciences, University of
		Nairobi P.O. Box 30197, Nairobi, Kenya
		Telephone: +254 202181354;
		Mobile: +254 722 308 581; +254 733240739
		·
11	Mala	Email: rkngugi@gmail.com; krngugi@uonbi.ac.ke
11.	Male	Dr. Ongeng Duncan
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture and Environment, Gulu University P.O. Box 166, Gulu, Uganda.
		Telephone: +256 471 32518
		Mobile: +256 782 673 491
40	n ,	Email: duncunongeng@hotmail.com
12.	Female	Prof. Pinkie Zwane
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture,
		University of Swaziland, Luyengo Campus. P.O. Luyengo, Swaziland
		Telephone: +268 251 70506
		+268 760 42111
		Email: <u>pezwane@uniswa.sz</u> ; <u>prezwane@realnet.co.sz</u>



No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
13.	Male	Dr. Bosco Bua
		Dean Faculty of Vocational studies, Department of Agriculture, Kyambogo University, P. O.
		Box 1 Kampala, Uganda.
		Telephone; +256 414 28 62 42
		Mobile: +256 712802369
		Email; boscobua@yahoo.com; bbua@kyu.ac.ug; deanvoc@kyu.ac.ug
		Website; www.kyu.mak.ac.ug
14.	Male	Dr. Julius Mwine
		Dean, Faculty of Agriculture, Uganda Martyrs University. P.O. Box 5498
		Kampala, Uganda.
		Telephone; +256-(0)38-2-410611
		Mobile: +256 772 86 7644; +256 776627143; +256 772 64 8863
		Email; <u>Jumwi@umu.ac.ug</u> ; <u>mwinej@yahoo.com</u>
15.	Male	Ass. Prof. Moayad Mohamed Balal Zaied
		Dean, Faculty of Natural Resources and Environmental studies, University of Kordofan, P.
		0. Box 160, El-Obeid, Sudan.
		Telephone; +249912332103 /+249912737679
		Mobile: +249 91272 6677; +249 9157 36575
		Email; Moayadzaied@yahoo.com; moayadbalal@kordofan.edu.sd
16.	Male	Dr. Charles Mutisi
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture, University of Zimbabwe. P. O. Box MP 167, Mt. Pleasant,
		Harare, Zimbabwe.
		Telephone: +263 4 333880;
		Mobile: +263 772 241579
		Email: mutisi@iwayafrica.co.zm; charles.mutisi@yahooo.co.uk
17.	Male	Dr. Mick Sikaenyi Mwala
		Dean of the School of Agricultural Sciences, University of Zambia, P.O. Box 32379, Lusaka,
		Zambia.
		Telephone: +260-211-250587;
		Mobile: +260 977670635
		E-mail: mmwala@unza.zm; mmwala@yahoo.com; dean-agric@unza.zm
18.	Male	Prof. Kamau Ngamau
		Dean, Faculty of Agriculture, Jomo Kenyatta University of Agriculture (JKUAT), Juja – Off
		Thika Road, P. O. Box 62000, Nairobi, Kenya
		Telephone: +254 67 52193 / 52711;
		Mobile: +254 724 078816;
. =		E-mail: dean@agr.jkuat.ac.ke; k ngamau@yahoo.com; kngamau@agr.jkuat.ac.ke
19.	Male	Assoc. Prof. Julius Onyango Ochuodho
		Dean, Faculty of Agriculture, University of Eldoret, P.O. Box 1125-30100, Eldoret, Kenya.
		Telephone: +254203551308
		Mobile: +254 721 871817
20	26.1	E-mail: deanuoeld.ac.ke; juliusochuodho@yahoo.com
20.	Male	Ass. Prof. David Owiny
		Dean School of Veternary Sciences, Makerere University College of Veterinary Medicine
		and Bio-Security, P. O. Box 7062, Kampala, Uganda
		Mobile: +256 772 443658
		Email: dowiny@vetmed.mak.ac.ug; owinyd@gmail.com



No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
21.	Female	Dr. Solange Uwituze
		Dean, Faculty of Agriculture, National University of Rwanda P.O. Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Telephone; +250 252530228
		Mobile: +250788309637; +250 788470945
		Email; suwituze@nur.ac.rw; <u>uwasolange@yahoo.fr</u>
22.	Male	Prof. Nelson Chapananga
		Dean Faculty of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, Universidade Catholica de
		Mozambique (UCM) Reitoria Rua Marques de Soveral, 960-C.P. 821-Beira- Sofala,
		Mozambique
		Telephone; 258 162732
		Email: nchapananga@ucm.ac.mz; nelsonchapananga@yahoo.com.br
23.	Male	Dr. Woreka Bedadi
		Dean College of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, Haramaya University, P. O. Box
		138, Dire Dawa, Ethiopia
		Telephone; +251 255530051
		Email; bobedadi@yahoo.com; bobedadi2009@gmail.com; bbedadi@haramaya.edu.et
24.	Male	Prof. Emilio Tostao
2	Train C	Dean of Faculty of Agronomy and Forestry Engineering, Main Campus Building No.1, Julius
		Nyerere Ave., Eduardo Mondlane University, P. O. Box 257, Maputo, Mozambique
		Telephone: +258 21 492142
		Mobile: +258 848459419
		Email: emilio.tostao@gmail.com; emilio.tostao@uem.mz
25.	Male	Prof. Jean Masamba Walangululu
23.	Male	Dean Faculty of Agriculture Catholic University B.P.2 Cyangugu, Bukavu, Kamembe, DRC
		Telephone: +243 813176063
		Email; walangululu@yahoo.fr
26.	Male	Prof. Waceke Wanjohi, FSB
20.	Male	Dean, School of Agriculture and Enterprise Development, Kenyatta University, Thika Road,
		P. O. Box 43844-00100, Nairobi, Kenya
		Telephone: +254 20-8710901-19;
		Mobile: +254 722-754938
		E-mail: dean-saed@ku.ac.ke; deansaed@gmail.com; wanjohi.waceke@ku.ac.ke
27.	Male	Abdalla Suliman, University of Gezira
27.	Male	
		P.O. Box 20, Wad Medani Sudan
		asasgedrf@yahoo.com; deanfas@uofg.edu.sd
20		Representatives of Deans
28.		Assoc. Prof. Timothy Gondwe
		Deputy Dean Faculty of Agriculture and Environment, Lilongwe University of Agriculture
		and Natural Resources P.O. Box 219, Lilongwe, Malawi
		Telephone: +265 888 386 847;
		Mobile: +265 993358407
20	D 1	Email: tgondwe@bunda.luanar.mw; timgondwe@yahoo.com
29.	Female	Dr. Theopoline O. Itenge
		Senior Lecturer, Faculty of Agriculture and Natural Resources, Neudamm Campus,
1		University of Namibia, Private Bag, 340 Mandume Ndemufayo Avenue, Pionierspark,
1		Windhoek, Namibia.
1		Telephone: +264-61-2064109
1		Mobile: +264 81 686 1605
		Email: <u>titenge@unam.na</u>



No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
30.	Male	Mr. Mehari Hailay
50.	Maic	Vice Dean, College of Dry land Agriculture and Natural Resources, Mekelle University,
		Ethiopia
		Telephone: +251 914 707399
		Mobile: +251 914 707377
		Email; himeri2004@yahoo.com; himeri20012@gmail.com
31.	Male	Prof. Umezuruike Linus Opara
31.	Male	Research Professor, Chair South African Post harvest Research, Stellenbosch University,
		Victoria Street, P.O. Box 7600, Stellenbosch, South Africa
		Telephone: +27 21 8084064
		Mobile: +27 785 62 6446
		Email: opera@sun.ac.za; umunam@yahoo.co.uk
		Invited Guests
32.	Male	Prof. Malcom Blackie
32.	Male	RUFORUM IAP member and Director bT Associate, UK. 9 Meadow Farm Drive, Cringleford,
		Norwich, NR4 6TR, UK
		Telephone: +256 7918184225
		Email: mblackie@netcom.co.uk; mblackie@bt-associates.org
33.	Male	Assoc. Prof. Patrick Okori
33.	Male	Principal Research Scientist, ICRISAT. ICRISAT-Lilongwe, Chitedze Agricultural Research
		Station. P.O. Box 1096 Lilongwe, Malawi.
		Telephone: +265 707292
		Mobile: +265 996 777683
		Email: p.okori@cgair.org; Patrick.okori@yahoo.com
34.	Male	Prof. Rukudzo Murapa
34.	Male	IAP member and Managing Director, Khulisa Management Services
		Parktown North, Johannesburg 2121, South Africa
		Email: murapa@yahoo.com
35.	Female	Ms. Lizbeth Livey
55.	remaie	Independent Consultant-ICT, Israel
		Telephone: +972-2-679-4084
		Mobile: +972-52-810-3025
		Levey180@gmail.com
36.	Male	Mr. Issa Agaba
50.	Maic	Brand and Marketing Manager, Makerere University. Plot 33, The Edge Makerere
		University P.O. Box 7062, Kampala, Uganda
		Telephone: +256 414 5312012
		Mobile: +256 772 920 337
		Email: agabaissa@yahoo.co.uk; pro@admin.mak.ac.ug
37.	Female	Ms. Jane Anyango
071	Temare	Communications Officer, College of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, Makerere
		University, P.O. Box 7062, Kampala, Uganda
		Telephone: +256 414 533620
		Mobile: +256 712 869 143; +256 758 870 067
		Email; j.anyango@gmail.com; pr@caes.mak.ac.ug
38.	Male	Mr. Ali Ahamed Puna Atumane
	1.4.0	Researcher, Catholic University of Mozambique, Universidade Catolica de Mozambique
		(UCM) Reitoria Rua Marques de Soveral, 960-C.P.821-Beira-Sofala, Mozambique
		Mobile: +258-825961720; +258843013093
		Email; aatumane@gmail.com; aatumane@ucm.ac.mz
L	1	,



No	Sex	Name and Address Details
No.		
39.	Male	Mr. David Campbell
		African Fellowship Trust
		Rural Agricultural Collection Lire zester V/C GL7 655/ The Vine Upper street Quainto
		Block HP224087, UK
		Telephone: +44 1296 655243
		Mobile: +44 780 182 397
		Email: <u>David@dacampbell.com</u>
40.	Female	Dr. Mirjam Gille
		Resident Representative DAAD and Senior Lecturer Makerere University
		C/o German Embassy P.O. Box 7016 Kampala, Uganda
		Mobile: +256 772 409 178
		Email: daad.uganda@yahoo.de; daad.uganda@gmail.com
41.	Male	Ass. Prof. George Gitau
		University of Nairobi College of Agriculture and Veterinary Sciences, P.O. Box 29053-
		00625, Nairobi, Kenya
		Mobile: +254 733 544822
		Email: gkgitau@uonbi.ac.ke
42.	Male	Dr. J. Kinama
12.	raic	Senior Lecturer and Head of Department Agronomy, University of Nairobi College of
		Agriculture and Veterinary Sciences, P.O. Box 29053-00625, Nairobi, Kenya
		Mobile: +254 722 841562
		Email: joskinama@yahoo.com; jkinama@uonbi.ac.ke
42	Male	
43.	мате	Mr.David Onyango
		Publishing and Outreach Officer, CABI. P.O Box 633-00621, Nairobi, Kenya
		Telephone: +254 20 7224450/62
		Mobile: +254 725 525 540
		Email: <u>D.onyango@cabi.org</u>
44.	Female	Ms. Matsimbe Msekiwa
		Research Fellow, NEPAD Regional Fish Node, Lilongwe University of Agriculture and
		Natural Resources, P.O. Box 219, Lolongwe, Malawi
		Mobile: +265 999473956
		Email: msekiw2@yahoo.com
		National University of Rwanda LOC
45.	Male	Mr. Nathan Kanuma Taremwa
		Lecturer, Faculty of Agriculture, National University of Rwanda University Avenue P.O.
		Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 788504820
		Email: nktaremwa@gmail.com; taremwa2001@yahoo.com
46.	Female	Ms. Gertrude Karekezi
		Administrative Assistant, Dean Faculty of Agriculture, National University of Rwanda
		University Avenue P.O. Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 788409002
		Email: gkarekezi@nur.ac.rw
47.	Male	Dr. George Nyombayire
	- 10.0	Lecturer, Faculty of Agriculture, National University of Rwanda University Avenue P.O.
		Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 786866547
		Email: gnyombaire@yahoo.com; gnyombaire@nur.ac.rw; gorgenyonmbaire@gmail.com
		Linan, gnyomban ewyanoo.com, gnyomban ewnur.ac.rw; gorgenyomban ewgman.com



No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
48.	Male	Mr. Jean Baptist Micomyza
		Communications Officer, National University of Rwanda University Avenue P.O. Box 56
		Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 788634945
		Email: <u>imicomyiza@nur.ac.rw</u> ; <u>micomyizajohn@gmail.com</u>
49.	Male	Mr. Kavara Mathias Nyamutare
		Student at National University of Rwanda University Avenue P.O. Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 728289351; +250 785289351
		Email: <u>mkavara@yahoo.fr</u> ; <u>mkavara@gmail.com</u>
50.	Female	Ms. Rosine Manishimwe
		Student at National University of Rwanda University Avenue P.O. Box 56 Butare, Rwanda
		Mobile: +250 788880180
		Email: shilosilic@gmail.com ; rosilie2020@y.fr
		RUFORUM Secretariat staff
51.	Male	Dr. Wellington Ekaya
		Training & Quality Assurance Manager, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala
		Uganda,
		Telephone: +256-414-535942,
		Mobile: +254 722278249,
		Email: <u>ekaya@africaonline.co.ke</u> ; <u>w.ekaya@ruforum.org</u>
52.	Male	Dr. Paul Nampala
		Grants Manager, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda
		Telephone: +256-414-535948,
		Mobile; +256 772-468 919; +256 701 468 919
		Email; p.nampala@ruforum.org
53.	Female	Ms. Nodumo Dhlamini
		Program Manager, ICT RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda,
		Telephone: +256-414-535939
		Mobile: +256 773229283
		Email: n.dhlamini@ruforum.org
54.	Female	Mrs. Agnes Akwang Obua-Ogwal
		RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda,
		Telephone: +256-414-535946
		Mobile: +256 772946826
		Email: a.akwang@ruforum.org
55.	Female	Mrs. Sylvia Chindime Mkandawire
		Training Officer, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda
		Telephone: +256-414-535948
		Mobile: +265 999 207296
T.C	- I	Email: s.chindime@ruforum.org
56.	Female	Ms. Joan Apio
		Communications Officer, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda,
		Telephone: +256-414-535946
		Mobile: +256 772946826
F7	Fax:-1-	Email: j.apio@ruforum.org
57.	Female	Mrs. Claire Ntwali
		Grants Management Officer RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda
		Telephone: +256-414-535948
		Mob: +256 721 494941
1		Email; c.ntwali@ruforum.org



No.	Sex	Name and Address Details
58.	Female	Ms. Evelyn Aguti
		Budget Controller, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala Uganda
		Telephone: 256-414-535948,
		Mobile; +256 772 525747
		Email; e.aguti@ruforum.org
59.	Male	Mr. Emmanuel Okalany
		Intern, Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation Unit, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062
		Kampala Uganda
		Tel: 256-414-535948,
		Mobile: +256 774 927 973
		Email: e.okalany@ruforum.org; emmaokalany7@gmail.com
60.	Male	Mr. Apollo Kwesiga
		Intern, Finance and Administration, RUFORUM Secretariat, P.O. Box 7062 Kampala
		Uganda
		Tel: 256-414-535948,
		Mobile; +256 773 952375
		Email; a.kwesiga@ruforum.org; apollo.kwesiga@gmail.com

Note: The participants shaded in purple were funded under the DAAD program